
Agenda Item B.5 
 CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Meeting Date:  March 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Masoud Mahmoud and Robert Woodward, Interim Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Award of Contracts with GHD Inc., for Professional Services to Complete 

a Development Impact Fee Study and to provide On-Call Traffic Modeling 
Services  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. Approve and authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Services 
Agreement with GHD Inc., for On-Call Traffic Modeling Services in an amount not to 
exceed $60,000 and a termination date of June 30, 2019. 

B. Approve and authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Services 
Agreement with GHD Inc., to complete the 2 0 1 8  Development Impact Fee Nexus 
Study in an amount of $30,000 and a termination date of June 30, 2019.  

C. Approve budget appropriations totaling an additional $30,000 from various DIF funds 
to the accounts identified in the Fiscal Impact section below  

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In June 2016, the Council awarded Agreement 2016-076 to Kimley-Horn and 
Associates (Kimley-Horn) to conduct on-call traffic modeling services in an amount not 
to exceed $140,000, with a term to expire on June 30, 2017. In June 2017, Council 
approved Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-076 with Kimley-Horn for additional 
compensation of $140,000 for a total not to exceed amount of $280,000, and to extend 
the term for an additional year to expire on June 30, 2018. This work effort has been led 
by Mr. Jim Damkowitch, a senior project manager with the Kimley-Horn Team. Mr. 
Damkowitch’ s expertise in traffic modeling and related traffic engineering disciplines 
was a primary basis for the City’s selection of Kimley-Horn for this work, and has 
contributed to the success of contractual work to date.  
 
In October 2016, the Council awarded Agreement 2016-141 with Kimley-Horn to 
conduct a Development Impact Fee Study (DIF Nexus Study) in an amount not to 
exceed $72,000 with a term to expire on October 31, 2017. On September 19, 2017, the 
City Council approved Amendment No. 1 which extended the term to December 31, 
2017. On December 19, 2017, the City Council approved Amendment No. 2 to extend 
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the term to June 30, 2018. The purpose of this project is to complete a study of the 
City’s current Development Impact Fee program in compliance with Government Code 
section 66000 et seq., and to make recommendations for updates to those fees. This 
work effort has also been led by Mr. Damkowitch, whose efforts have contributed to the 
success of Development Impact Fee program work to date.     
 
On March 8, 2018, the City was informed that Kimley-Horn’s Senior Project Manager, 
Mr. Damkowitch, had departed the firm and joined a new firm, GHD Inc. Given the 
expertise of Mr. Damkowitch in the context of these two assigned City projects, and 
consistent with Section 13 of the City’s contracts with Kimley-Horn, the City terminated 
these two contracts with Kimley-Horn and is recommending execution of new contracts 
with GHD Inc., the new employer of Mr. Damkowitch. 
 
On-Call Traffic Modeling 
 
This contract is for on-call traffic modeling services in conjunction with the Goleta 
Transportation Improvement Program and CIP projects. The effort includes a variety of 
traffic modeling services, including private traffic impact project alternative analyses, 
model forecasts, and transportation engineering and planning in addition to providing 
traffic modeling services for City CIP projects.  
 
Development Impact Fee Nexus Study 2018 
 
The scope of work for the DIF Nexus Study is to prepare a new nexus study for the 
City’s Development Impact Fees, including all the analysis and modeling associated 
with this effort.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On-Call Traffic Modeling 
 
The agreement with GHD Inc. is consistent with the same on-call scope previously 
provided by Kimley-Horn. Mr. Jim Damkowitch will serve as the Project Manager, 
allowing for continuity of on-going on-call activities. Staff is recommending a not to 
exceed budget of $60,000 for this work with a termination date of June 30, 2019. 
 
Development Impact Fee Nexus Study 2018 
 
Due to delays in the execution of a parallel contract to prepare development impact 
project cost estimates for the identified mitigation improvements, the DIF update effort 
performed previously by Kimley-Horn did not commence until spring of 2017. While 
work has progressed well, it is not complete and supplemental efforts not originally 
anticipated have been requested by City Staff. Consequently, the new scope of work 
with GHD Inc., will facilitate completion of the DIF Nexus Study, which will be brought to 
Council for approval. As with the on-call traffic modeling work, the GHD Inc. Project 
Manager for the completion of the Development Impact Fee Study will be Mr. Jim 
Damkowitch, which will allow for a seamless continuity on this important project.  
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Staff is requesting an additional appropriation of $30,000 for completion of the DIF 
Nexus Study under the new contract because the DIF update effort has generated 
additional services not anticipated when this effort began. It should be noted that this 
“DIF Update” is a major undertaking and is not truly an “update” to any previous nexus 
study. More issues and questions are involved in the current effort than a typical nexus 
study update. Variations of the fees have been explored at staff’s request to fully vet the 
appropriate type and amount of the fees that would be appropriate for the City to 
charge. Multiple departments have collaborated to review the draft work product and 
provide feedback to the consultant. The additional services were anticipated a few 
weeks ago and a contract amendment agenda item was going to be brought to Council 
at the last meeting to amend the original contract with Kimley-Horn, but that item was 
pulled in light of news that Mr. Damkowitch was moving firms. Therefore, staff 
consolidated the additional contract appropriation and contract with Mr. Damkowitch’s 
new employer into this item.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
A total appropriation of $30,000 from various Development Impact Fee (DIF) fund 
balances will be required to fund the new DIF Nexus Study contract with GHD Inc., 
totaling $30,000. Funding for the new On-Call Traffic Modeling contract of $60,000 with 
GHD, Inc. will be supported by salary savings this fiscal year, and existing allocations in 
the FY 18/19 budget of $50,000. Approximately $30,000 from salary savings will be 
needed through the end of this fiscal year to address the 6100/6210 Hollister Fair Share 
Analysis, which was not provided under the previous Kimley-Horn Agreement.  
 
There is sufficient fund balance from DIF funds provided in the table below for the new 
scope of work described above: 
 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

Fund GL Account Adopted 
Budget 

YTD Actual/ 
Encumbrance 

Additional 
Appropriation 

Adjusted 
Balance 

      
GTIP 220-5-8100-500 27,709 27,709 17,680 21,691 

Park DIF 221-5-8100-500 12,282 12,282 7,680 6,450 
Public Admin 
DIF 222-5-8100-500 3,626 3,626 0 0 

Library 
Facilities DIF 223-5-8100-500 1,258 1,258 0 0 

Sheriff 
Facilities DIF 224-5-8100-500 2,997 2,997 2,140 1,800 

Housing In-
Lieu  225-5-8100-500 3,626 3,626 2,500 2,100 

Fire Facilities 
DIF 229-5-8100-500 3,626 3,626 0 0 

Total  $55.124 $55,124 $30,000 $32,041 
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ALTERNATIVES: 
 
On-Call Traffic Modeling 
 
The Council could choose to not execute the new On-Call Traffic Modeling agreements 
with GHD Inc., which would require the City to secure alternative traffic modeling 
expertise. Such an effort would take many months and would jeopardize critical projects 
and efforts currently underway by the City. 
 
Development Impact Fee Study 2018 
 
The Council could choose to not execute the new Development Impact Fee Study 2018 
agreement with GHD Inc., which would delay the completion of the study and the 
update of the current fees in accordance with the requirements of the Mitigation Fee Act 
(AB 1600). As a result, the funds collected through the current fee structure may not 
adequately reflect the City’s needs to meet future improvements based on new 
development. 
 
 
Reviewed By: Legal Review By: Approved By: 
 
 
 
___________________             ___________________          ___________________     
Carmen Nichols  Michael Jenkins Michelle Greene 
Deputy City Manager City Attorney             City Manager 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Agreement for Professional Services for On-Call Traffic Modeling between the City 

of Goleta and the GHD Inc. 

2. Agreement for Professional Services for completion of the Development Impact Fee 
Study 2018 between the City of Goleta and the GHD Inc. 
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ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Agreement for Professional Services for On-Call Traffic Modeling between the City of 
Goleta and the GHD Inc. 

 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Agreement for Professional Services for completion of the Development Impact Fee 
Study 2018 between the City of Goleta and the GHD Inc.. 
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